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The Fillmore County Courthouse is located on a two square block parcel of land
along the southern edge of Geneva's main business district. The park-like setting
is broken only by the courthouse parking lot just south of the building and by public
parking at both the far western and eastern edges of the site. Neither of the public
parking lots infringe on the setting of the courthouse.

The building is a two story brick structure above a raised basement. The foun-
dation is rustricated limestone in a slightly battered wall, while the roof is an
asphalt shingled hipped roof. The overall design of the building represents a
rather vernacular version of the Richardsonian Romanesque style. Each major facade
exhibits a five-part composition with three-sided bay pavilions at each end and a
slightly projecting pavilion in the center. The end pavilions have hipped roofs
with gabled wall dormers. The central pavilions of the east, west and south walls
are all topped with gabled dormers——those of the east and west being of an unusual
stepped gable design.

Attention is focused on the north wall where a three story tower surmounts the

central entrance pavilion. The tower roof, which still has its original slate
roofing, is a flat-topped octagonal pyramid surrounded by a simple balustrade.
The original gabled dormers have been removed. The large round-arched entrance is
detailed in stone in typical Richardsonian Romanesque fashion. A community clock
is located on each side of the tower, installed by Geneva jeweler W. P. McCall in
1909.

Designed by the then Geneva architect, George E. McDonald in 1892, the buildjng
was modeled after the fine Gage County Courthouse in Beatrice by Gunn and Curtis.
The building lacks the sophistication in design and execution of the Beatrice example
which is more thoroughly Richardsonian in form and detail. McDonald's design, while
exhibiting many characteristic features of Richardsonian Romanesque, is more eclectic
in its excessive variety of form, detail and material.

The axial symmetry of the exterior (along a north-south axis) is evident in the
interior arrangement of space. A large hallway runs through the center of the building
in an east-west direction and widens at the main entrance vestibule in the center.
Large stair-halls on both the first and second floors are at either end, opening
to the south of the main hallway. Offices open off the hallway north and south on
both levels except on the second floor where the large district courtroom occupies
the central section of the building south of the hallway. Notable interior features
include the borrow lights between the court offices and the second floor stair hall,
large frame Romanesque arches in the main floor hallway and a profusion of pressed
metal wall and ceiling coverings (added in 1916). The pressed metal work is nowhere
more evident than in the district courtroom where three different designs are used
for the ceiling, walls and wainscot.

1. Goeldner. (1970), page 330.
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The building is in good shape and retains much of its original fabric,
both inside and out. The most unfortunate alteration has been the window
replacement project which took place in the late 1960's. Fully one-half
of the 155 windows have been bricked closed or replaced with glass block.
All four ‘entrances have been modernized. Original wall openings, however,
remain in tact.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The first settlements om the land which became Fillmore County occured
in 1866~67. .Four years later, orgamic elections were held and the county
was organized in 1871. The townsite of Geneva was surveyed in that year
and the first county buildings were under construction by December of 1872,
The county jail was completed early in 1873 and the first court house was
completed shortly thereafter in the same year.

Less than two decades later, the need for an expanded, fireproof facility
became evident. After one unsuccessful attempt, the voters of the county
approved a bond issue for construction of a new building on the basis of plans
submitted by local architect, George E. McDonald. Ground was broken in
December of 1892 and the contract was awarded to Geneva contractor, L. F.
Pardue for $46,176.55 on January 11, 1893. The building was dedicated on
February 22, 1894.

The building has been a focal point of county legal activities and has
been the major landmark in the region since its completion in 1894. Its
significance as landmark perhaps outweighs its architectural significance,
however, it is the major building of any architectural pretense identified
in the county to date. .

The architectural importance of the building is evident as a local inter-
pretation of the Richardsonian Romanesque style of architecture. The style
gained widespread popularity following the completion of H. H. Richardson's
Allegheny County Courthouse in Pittsburgh in 1888. Of particular interest
is the attempt to copy, on a smaller scale and with less expensive materials,
Gunn & Curtis' design for the Gage County Courthouse, fifty miles to the east.
Goeldner notes (1970, page 330) that a perspective drawing of the Gage County
building was used to illustrate the proposed Fillmore County building prior
to the bond issue vote.
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Photo 1 General view looking S along 9th St
Photo by D. Murphy, NSHS, May 1978 (7805/1:34)



Photo 2 View of main (N) facade, looking S
Photo by D. Murphy, NSHS, May 1978 (7805/1:30)



Photo 3 View of main (N) entrance, looking S
Photo by D. Murphy, NSHS, May 1978 (7805/1:20)
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Photo 4 Detail view of W end pavilion of N facade, looking S
Photo by D. Murphy, NSHS, May 1978 (7805/1:25)



Photo 5 View of S facade looking N
Photo by D. Murphy, NSHS, May 1978 (7805/1:7)



Photo 6 View of the S & W facades looking NE
Photo by D. Murphy, NSHS, May 1978 (7805/1:13)
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Photo by D. Murphy, NSHS, May 1978 (7805/1:3)

Photo 7 View of S & E facades looking NW
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